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A RESOLUTION BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF DEKALB 
COUNTY, GEORGIA, TO RELOCATE THE RELIC CANNON LOCATED ON 

THE CITY OF DECATUR SQUARE 

WHEREAS, the Official Code of Georgia Annotated § 36-9-2 authorizes counties to exercise 
control of all property belonging to the County;  

WHEREAS, the City of Decatur Square is owned by DeKalb County (Title Opinion, Exhibit 
“A”); 

WHEREAS, a mounted cannon was placed on the Decatur Square in 1906 by the Agnes Lee 
Chapter of the United Daughters of the Confederacy (“Relic Cannon”), but present-day ownership of that 
cannon is unknown (Title Opinion, Exhibit “A”);  

WHEREAS, no documentation has been found to establish that the Relic Cannon was dedicated 
to or accepted by DeKalb County or that the Relic Cannon is publicly owned;  

WHEREAS, the Relic Cannon is mounted on a base with an inscription that reads, in its entirety, 
“Relic of the Indian War of 1836. Mounted by Agnes Lee Chapter U.D.C. No 434. Apr. 26, 1906.”;  

WHEREAS, the Relic Cannon, according to historical records and scholarship, is of unknown 
origin and provenance and thus cannot be accurately attributed or dedicated to any particular historical or 
military entity or event, including the Indian War of 1836 (Historical Society Records, Exhibit “B”);  

WHEREAS, the Relic Cannon’s inscription specifies that the cannon is a “relic”, as opposed to a 
dedication or memorial that would be subject to the terms of O.C.G.A. § 50-3-1;  

WHEREAS, although the Relic Cannon is of unknown provenance, the plaque affixed to the side 
asserts that it is a relic from the “Indian War of 1836”,  

WHEREAS, the Relic Cannon has been the focus of much public discussion, a petition for 
removal, and various protest and rallies; and 

WHEREAS, for the foregoing reasons, the Governing Authority desires to remove the Relic 
Cannon from the Decatur Square and house it in an appropriate storage facility while the Governing 
Authority takes steps to notify potential owners and allow the rightful owner(s), if they can be found, to 
reclaim and retrieve the Relic Cannon. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Authority of DeKalb County as 
follows: 

1. The Relic Cannon is not publicly-owned and is not a monument as that terms is defined
by state law;

2. That the Relic Cannon shall be moved to an appropriate storage facility by County staff
within ninety (90) days from the adoption and approval of this resolution; and
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3. The County Attorney is directed to place a notice in the County’s legal organ to advise
the public and potential owners of this Resolution and ownership issues related to the
Relic Cannon and to report back to the Governing Authority if any potential owners can
provide any indicia of ownership of the Relic Cannon.

ADOPTED by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners, this ____ day of ____, 
2021. 

______________________________ 
STEPHEN R. BRADSHAW 
Presiding Officer 
Board of Commissioners 
DeKalb County, Georgia 

APPROVED by the Chief Executive Officer, this _____ day of ______, 2021. 

______________________________ 
MICHAEL L. THURMOND 
Chief Executive Officer 
DeKalb County, Georgia 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 

_____________________________               ______________________________ 
BARBARA H. SANDERS-NORWOOD, CCC ZACHARY L. WILLIAMS 
County Clerk                                                   Chief Operating Officer 
Board of Commissioners and DeKalb County, Georgia 
Chief Executive Officer 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________ 
VIVIANE H. ERNSTES 
County Attorney 
DeKalb County, Georgia 
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TITLE MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: May 11, 2021 
File No.: 84778 
Date Examined: April 30, 2021 
To: DeKalb County 
Client File No.: Cannon on Decatur Square 

 
 
To:   Noah Priest‐Goodsett, Assistant County Attorney  

DeKalb County Government  

Law Department 

1300 Maloof Building  

4th Floor  

Decatur, GA 30030 

 
Re:  Indian War of 1836 Cannon Monument 
  101 East Court Square, Decatur, GA 
  Old DeKalb County Courthouse Parcel 15‐246‐04‐058  
 
We were  retained  to  determine  the  ownership  of  the  land where  a  specific  cannon 
monument  is  located within Decatur, Georgia.      The  cannon  subject  to  this  search  is 
generally described as follows and hereinafter referred to as the “Cannon”: 
 

1. The  Cannon  has  an  unknown  original  manufacture  date  but  according  to 
historical records was, in part, used during the Indian War of 1836.   

2. The Cannon was mounted and placed within  the Decatur Square on or around 
April 26, 1906, by the United Daughters of the Confederacy. 

3. It  is  likely  that  as  other  historical markers  and monuments  have  been moved 
over the years within the City of Decatur, and therefore the Cannon may not be 
in the exact location as originally placed. 

 
CONTINUED . . .  
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4. We have based  this  search on historical  records and photographic evidence of 
the  location of  the Cannon.    (Photographs  relied upon are attached hereto on 
Exhibit “A” Documents,  Image 1 and  Image 2)   Relying upon  the photographic 
evidence  and  DeKalb  County  Tax  Assessor  Maps,  we  have  determined  the 
location is within Parcel 15‐246‐04‐058.  We do, however, except to the fact that 
only a  registered  land surveyor can attest  to  the exact physical  location of  the 
Cannon.   

 
Upon  information  and  belief,  DeKalb  County  has  operated  as  owner  of  the  Old 
Courthouse, parcel number 15‐246‐04‐058  (hereinafter  the  “Old Courthouse Parcel”), 
since approximately 1822.  If a deed was of record, it would have most likely perished in 
the  courthouse  fire  of  1829.   As  there  is  no  verifiable  deed  of  record  found, we  are 
operating under the assumption that at some point in history DeKalb County did obtain 
fee simple title to the Old Courthouse Parcel, in the location as shown on current DeKalb 
County Tax Assessor Maps. 
 
Upon  information  and  belief,  the  DeKalb  History  Center  has  operated  within  the 
building  located at the Old Courthouse Parcel after a Resolution by the DeKalb County 
Board of Commissioners in 1968. 
 
On or  around August 26, 1971,  the Old DeKalb County Courthouse was  listed on  the 
National  Register  of  Historic  Places.    The  Inventory  –  Nomination  Form  lists  DeKalb 
County as the owner of the property. 
 
At some point  in time the boundary  lines of the Old Courthouse Parcel were changed; 
however, we can find no specific deeds changing the location of the boundary lines.  We 
must assume that the boundary  line changes were appropriate and accurate and most 
likely due to the development of the area and the closing of streets  in and around the 
area. 
 
 

 
CONTINUED . . .  
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Research  conducted  has  been  limited  to  the  items  that  are  of  record  around  the 
location  of  the  above‐referenced  parcel.   We  have  researched  through  all  available 
records  in the DeKalb County Real Estate Records.    In our research we have found the 
following activity around the roads and location of the Old Courthouse Parcel: 
 

1. 1931  Survey  of  Old  Courthouse  recorded  at  Plat  Book  15,  Page  246,  DeKalb 
County, Georgia Records.  Please note that a review of the survey does not show 
the location of the Cannon; however, the sidewalk abuts the road; therefore it is 
reasonably  assumed  that  the  Cannon  was  most  likely  located  within  the 
boundaries of the plat. 
 

2. Sewer agreement, dated December 1909, from County of DeKalb acting by and 
through  its  Commissioner  of  Roads  and  Revenue  to  The  Town  of  Decatur, 
recorded  at Deed  Book  3‐N,  Page  368, DeKalb  County, Georgia  records.    This 
sewer  easement  travelled  from  the  courthouse  property  southerly  down 
McDonough Street.   

3. Swanton Way  aka  Atlanta  Avenue  aka  Electric  Avenue;  Sycamore  Street;  and 
McDonough Street converged to the South of the Old Courthouse Parcel.  On or 
around 1976,  several  roads around  the Old Courthouse Parcel were closed  for 
development.  We did not find any right of way or road documents for the roads 
directly south of the Old Courthouse Parcel.    

4. The areas surrounding or following the path of the MARTA rail line are plentiful 
and we went through each easement  filed during the 1970s construction.   The 
only  easement  which  specifically  referenced  property  on  or  around  the  Old 
Courthouse  Parcel  is  Easement  by  and  between  DeKalb  County,  Georgia  and 
Metropolitan  Atlanta  Rapid  Transit  Authority,  dated  May  25,  1975,  filed  for 
record September 16, 1975,  recorded at Deed Book 3389, Page 171, aforesaid 
records.    It  is  of  note  that  other  easements  to Marta  on  the  line were  also 
granted from DeKalb County.   No easements were found  in the general vicinity 
showing the party: City of Decatur. 

5. DeKalb County tax assessor records reflect the ownership of the Old Courthouse 
Parcel to be DeKalb County. 

 

 
CONTINUED . . .  
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The  lack  of  plats  and missing  records  from  the  1800s  complicate  the matter  but we 
found no other documents that convey the old courthouse or monuments to any other 
party.   Further, we have found that within the limited records of the area there are no 
conveyances from the City of Decatur and it appears that DeKalb County has acted with 
an ownership  interest of the Old Courthouse and the properties within the  immediate 
vicinity. 

EXCEPTIONS 
 

A. Such statement of facts as would be disclosed by an accurate survey and 
inspection of all properties subject to any deeds referenced in the full chains of 
title. 

B. The exact amount of acreage of the property. 
C. Rights of parties in possession, if any, not of record. 
D. All easements and restrictions of record. 
E. All matters shown on plats of survey referred to in descriptions. 
F. Zoning ordinances and any other government restrictions affecting the subject 

property. 
G. Rights of parties in possession, if any, other than the owner. 
H. Restrictions, easements and all questions arising out of zoning laws, ordinances 

or regulations. 
I. All security interests and liens of record, including but not limited to security 

deeds, judgements, fifas, taxes or any other interest held by third‐parties. 
J. Any objections or defects not disclosed herein that are shown of record but are 

not shown during the effective dates herein.   
 

CONCLUSION 
 

After reviewing all of the documents referenced herein and subject to the qualifications, 
limitations  and  exceptions  set  forth  herein, we  are  of  the  opinion  that  although  no 
verifiable chain of title exists for the Old Courthouse Parcel; that DeKalb County  is the 
only party we find that has held itself as an owner to the land.  No certification can be 
given as to the ownership of the Cannon itself. 
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